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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF GMR HYDERBAD AVIATION SEZ LIMITED,

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of GMR Hyderabad
Aviation SEZ Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2017, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies (Collectively Known as the Ind AS Financial
Statements) and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and' prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind
AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
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of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Actin the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs (financial
position) of the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its losses (financial performance including
other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Emphasis of Matter Paragraph

We draw attention to Note 30(i) to the Ind AS financial statements regarding the
recoverability of the dues from GMR Aerospace Engineering Limited (GAEL) , wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company’s holding Company, M/s GMR Hyderabad International Airport
Ltd (GHIAL) and GMR Aero Technic Limited (GATL) which is a wholly owned subsidiary
of GAEL. The total dues of the Company as at March 31,2017 includes Rs.432,768,669/-
(March 31,2016 Rs.378,153,786/~ April 01,2015 Rs.286,150,925/-) from GMR Aerospace
Engineering Limited (henceforth referred to as GAEL), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company’s holding company, M/s GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited (GHIAL)
and GMR Aero Technic Limited (henceforth referred to as GATL), which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of GAFL. Out of the above dues from GAEL and GATL, an amount of
Rs.383,602,205/- (March 31, 2016 Rs.334,593,257/-; April 01,2015 Rs.210,270,395/-) is
outstanding for more than six months. Considering the nature of business of GATL and based
on the business projections and contracts with Customer, management is confident that
revenues of GATL and GAEL will improve and the Company will be able to recover its dues.
Further, GHIAL has committed the support to GAEL and GATL in meeting its operational
and financial obligations. Based on business projections and contracts entered by the GATL
with its customers and support letter from GHIAL, the management has considered its dues
from GAEL and GATL are good of recovery and as such no provision has been made in the
books of account.

Our Opinion is not Qualified on the above said matters
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;
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c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income , the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2017
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and aceording to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed pending litigations which would impact its
financial position in Note 34 of the Ind AS financial statements

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts required be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  The company had provided requisite disclosures in its financial statements as
regards its holdings and dealings in Specified Bank Notes during November 08,
2016 to December 30, 2016, as defined in the Notification 8.0 3407(E) dated the
November 08, 2016 and it is in accordance with the books of accounts
maintained by the company.

For Brahmayya & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration no: 0005155

R N

G.Srinivas

Place; New Delhi Partner
Date: 21, April 2017 Membership No- 086761
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors” Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company
on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 we report that:

@
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 1nc1ud1ng
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Management has not conducted any physical verification of fixed assets during the
year. However, the Company has the program of physical verification of fixed assets at
reasonable intervals of time and to deal with material discrepancies identified on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties
are held in the name of the Company.

(ii) The activities of the Company did not involve purchase of inventory and sale of
goods during the year and accordingly Clause (i) of the paragraph 3 of the Order is
not applicable to the Company for the year.

(iiif ~ The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to any company,
firm, Limited Liability Partnership or other parties listed in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly clauses from
(iii) (a) to (iii) (c} of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has no loans, investments, guarantee and security which meets the
requirements of section 185 and 186 of the Act.

(v)  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

(vi)  The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

- (vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the
records as produced and examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in
depositing with appropriate authorities the undisputed statutory dues including
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other
statutory dues to the appropriate authority to the extent applicable to it and there
are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at March 31, 2017 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.
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b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in
respect of Sales Tax, Income Tax, Customs Duty, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Excise
Duty, and Cess which have not been deposited on account of dispute except for the

below:

CONTINUATION SHEET

Name of
the Statute

Period for
which the
amount
Relates

Amount
Involved

Nature of Dues
is pending

Forum where Dispute

Finance
Act 1994

October
2011 to
March 2016

Granting exemption | Rs.8,54,95,588/-

of service tax under Central Excise

) Service Tax
renting of

immovable property
services without
obtaining Form Al /
A2 :

Commissioner(Audit),
and

{viii}

(xii)

(xiif)

(xiv)

According to the information and explanations given by the management, we are of
the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial
institution and bank. The Company has not issued any debentures during the year
and doesn’t have any outstanding dues in respect of debenture holders.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided
for managerial remuneration as per the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule
V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii} of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of
such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares of fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.

Accordmg to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-

hartered

Countants |-
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paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934.

For Brahmayya & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration no: 0005155

N =Y |

. G.Srinivas
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 21, April 2017 Membership No- 086761
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“Annexure - B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GMR Hyderabad
Aviation SEZ Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit
of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI"). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on

Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, bothi issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

‘e believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over

7@
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,

- including the possibility of collusion ot improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial repotting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal confrol
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Explanatory paragraph

We have also audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, and the
related Statement of Profit and Loss, including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. This material
weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in
our audit of the March 31, 2017 Ind AS financial statements of the Company and this report affects
our report dated April 21, 2017 which expressed a unqualified opinion on those Ind AS financial
statements.

For Brahmayya & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration no: 0005155

R 1\ W

G.Srinivas
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 21, April 2017 Membership No- 086761

Chartared
Accountants }*



GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited
CIN No.U45208TGZO07PLCOGGE2Y
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2017

Amountin %

ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 61,11,59,354 66,48,69,506 689,49,40,622
{b} Capital work-in-progress 18,56,83,686 18,20,60,545 18,97,53,515
{c) Other non-current assets 5 2,38,95,991 1,24,46,612 77,16,075
82,07,39,031 85,93,76,663 89,24,10,212
Current assets
{a) Financlal Assets
{1} Investments 6 7,85,75,118 2,45,40,851 49,165,748
{ii} Trade recelvables 7 44,00,88,835 39,53,15,078 29,20,79,123
{iii} Cash and cash equivalents 8 . 13,14,20,036 3,39,665 - 72,37,028
{b) Current Tax Assets {Net) 10,12,432 1,24,08,973 2,65,38,858
{¢) Other current assets g 18,456,535 21,87,083 57,69,595
65,29,42,956 43,47,91,650 33,75,41,352
Total Assets 1,47,36,81,987 1,29,41,68,313 1,22,99,51,564
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Eqiuity Share capital 10 51,60,00,000 51,60,00,000 49,50,00,000
{b) Other Equity 21 7,91,64,850 13,11,01,445 12,40,31,767
59,51,64,850 64,71,01,445 62,30,31,767
Liahilities
Non - current liakilites
{a) Financial Liabllities
(i) Borrowings 12 59,71,80,333 54,85,27,281 49,38,62,061
(i) Other financial habilities 13 71,01,467 2,53,42,641 47,834,476
{b) Deferred tax liabllities {Net} 14 2,26,84,713 74,83,950 91,565,585
(c} Other Non Current Liabilitles 15 2,62,46,140 1,83,71,489 1,46,11,774
65,32,12,653 59,97,25,361 52,24,23,896
Current Habilities
{a) Financlal Liahilities
(i) Trade payables
{a} Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and - - -
smalf enterprises
(b} Total cutstanding dues of Creditors other than 16 5,46,90,607 2,45,16,700 6,12,62,385
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(i) Gther financial liabilities 17 16,75,64,935 2,13,27,893 2,15,91,655
(b} Other current liahilities 18 30,48,942 14,956,915 16,41,861
22,53,04,484 4,73,41,507 8,44,95,901
Total Equity and Liahilites 1,47,36,81,987 1,29,41,68,313 1,22,99,51,564
NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As per the report of even date
For Brahmayya & Co., For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited

{CAIl Firm Registration No.: 0005155

— A

G. Srinivas . 5.G.K. Kishore War Arora
Partner Director frector
Membership No : 086761 DiN : 02916539 DIN : 03174536
Sandip Sinha Ray | ishnan EN/
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

M.No FCS 5402
Place : Hyderabad
Date: April 21, 2017

Place : New Delhi
Date: April 21, 2017




GIMR Hyderahad Aviation SEZ Limited
CIN No.LI45209TG2007PLCOS6527
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

. Revenue from Operations 19 13,61,91,486 15,68,36,384

Il. ~ OtherIncome 20 61,78,956 4,15,16,424
1R ) Total Income (1 +11) 14,23,70,442 19,83,52,808

IV, Expenses

Concassion Feeas 2,34,54,838 2,61,00,094
Finance Cost 21 6,41,08,841 5,81,17,406
Depreciation and amortisation expense : 22 5,01,13,858 4,96,04,035
Other expenses 23 3,78,40,246 : 421,43 230
Total expenses (IV) 17,55,17,823 17,59,64,765
V.  Profit before tax {Hll- V) . (3,31,47,381) 2,23,88,043
V1. Tax Expenses:
a. Current Tax . 24 -
. Relating to current perioed 35,02,859 45,506,037
b. Deferred tax liability /{Asset} 14
i. On Temporary Differences . . L 1,52,00,763 {1€,81,635)
il. MAT Credit entitlement {3,14,408) (45,60,037)
Total Tax Expenses (V) 1,87,89,214 (16,81,635)
VIl Profit for the period (V - V1) (5,19,36,595) . 2,40,69,678

Vil Other Comprehensive income
i. [tems that wiil not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
ii. Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the period (VHI) - -

[X. ~ Total Comprehensive Income for The Peried {VII + VIII) (5,19,36,595) 2,40,65,678
X.  Earnings per equity share from Continuing cperations: 25
Basic and Diluted (1.01) 0.47

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As per the report of even date
For Brahmayya & Co., Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited
ICAl Firm Registration No.: 0005155

—Eeah4

G. Srinivas A 5.G.K. Kishore Ra umar Arora
Partner Director rector
Membership No ; 086761 ' DIN : 02916539 DIN : 03174536

Sandip Sinha Ray
Chief Financial Officer

pany Secretary
M.No FCS 5402

Place : New Delhi Place : Hyderabad

Date: Aprii 21, 2017 Date: April 21, 2017




GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited
CIN No.U45209TG2007PLCO56527
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

A. Equity Share Capital Amount in X

i. Forthe year ended March 31, 2017 49,90,00,000 - 49,50,00,000
ii. Forthevyear ended March 31, 2016 49,90,00,000 1,70,00,000 51,60,00,000

B. Other Equity

I. Balance as at April 01, 2015 . 1,70,00,000 10,70,31,767 12,40,31,767
Profit for the year . 2,40,69,678 2,40,69,578
Other Comprehensive income for the year - -
Issue of Share capltai : {1,70,00,000) {1,70,00,000)

I, Balance as at March 31, 2016 " 13,11,01,445 13,11,01,445
Prefit for the year - {5,19,36,595) (5,19,36,535)
Other Comprehensive income for the year - -

lll. Balance as at March 31, 2017 - 7,91,64,850 7,91,64,850

As per the report of aven date

For Brahmayya & Co., For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited
ICAl Firm Registration No.: 0005155 ' M}

‘K. Kishore Wmar Arora

G. Srinivas S.

Partner Director Director

Membership No : 086761 DIN : 02916539 DIN : 03174536
Sandip Sinha Ray ) Krish(rerﬂ/
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

M.No FCS 5402

Place : New Delhi Place : Hyderabad
Date: April 21, 2017 Date: Aprii 21, 2017




GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited
CIN No.U45209TE2007PLCOSE527
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

L. Cash flow from operating activities:
A.  Profit before tax (3,31,47,381) 2,23,88,043

B. Adjustment for non-cash transactions:

a. Depreciation and amaortization expenses 5,01,13,898 4,96,04,035

b. Bad debts Written Off 39,349 :
i, Excess provisions/ Credit Balances written hack (13,47,773) (3,75,69,086)
4,88,05,474 1,20,34,949

C. Adjustment for investing and financing activities:
a. Interestincome:
i.  Changes in fair value of financial assets - -

ii. From bank deposits and others {16,06,422) (10,87,258)
b. Income from Investments;

i. Change In fair value (32,693) (32,341}
Ii. Galns onsale of investments (26,24,286) (19,32,337)
c. Amortisation of Deferred Income (5,67,782) (8,85,402)
d. Interest paid on borrowings (finance cost) £,34,72,132 5,74,23,683
e, Amortisation of Upfront fee 5,41,002 5,068,065
f. Noticnal Interest on Security deposit 1,31,014 5,49,556
5,93,12,965 5,45,31,966

0. Adjustment for changes in working capital:
a. Decrease [ {increase) in trade receivables {4,48,13,111) {10,32,35,952)
¢. Decrease / {increase) in other current assets 3,40,548 45,82,512
d. (Decrease) /Increase in trade payables 3,15,21,680 8,23,402
e, (Decrease) fincrease in other financial term liabilities 12,24,32,636 2,06,40,249
f. (Decrease) /Increase in other current liabilities 94,26,678 36,14,769
11,89,08,431 {7,35,75,020)
E,  Cash generated from operations (A+8+C) 19,38,79,489 1,53,79,938
Less: Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 78,08,090 1,41,29,885
Net cash flow from operating activities (I} 20,16,87,579 2,95,09,823

"l Cash flows from investing activities

a- Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP (36,23,141) (1,18,39,553)
b.  Payments to capital creditors, other non-current assats (net of written (1,14,49,379) (47,30,537)
off's)

¢.  Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 35,96,25% -

d.  Purchase of financial instruments {Investments) {23,87,00,000) (10,74,0C,000)
e. Proceeds from sale of financial instruments (Investments) 18,46,98,426 ,78,08,238
f.  Interest Income received 42,30,708 30,19,595
Net cash flow from/ (used in} investing activities (i) (6,12,47,127) (3,31,42,657)

It.  Cash flows from financing activities
a. Proceeds from borrowings ‘ - -
b. Interest paid for the year (93,60,083) {32,64,529)

Net cash flow {used in) financing activities (1) {93,60,083) {32,64,529)
V. Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (I + Il + Il) 13,10,80,371 (68,97,363)
Cash and cash equivaients at the beginning of the year 3,'39,665 72,37,028

V. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13,14,20,036 3,39,665




GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited
CIN No.\)45209TG2007PLCOS6527
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Amaount in %

Vi. Components of cash and cosh equivalents:
a. Cashonhand - -
h.  Cheques, Drafts and Stamps on hand : - -

¢ With banks:
i. Qn{Current Account 13,14,20,036 3,358,665
ii. - ©n Deposit Account having original maturity less than three -
menths

Total cash and eash equivalents (note 8) 13,14,20,036 3,390,665

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As per the report of even date

For Brahmayya & Co., : - For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 0005155
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Chref Financial Officer Company Secretary
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.Corporate information

The Compény was incorporated on December 4, 2007 as a wholly owned subsidiary of GMR Hyderabad
International Airport Limited. The main objective of the company is to carry on the business of Development
of Infrastructure for Special Economic Zone (SEZ) and Domestic Tariff Area inciuding planning, designing,
operating and marketing a SEZ in an existing airport and domestic tariff area.

These financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors on April 21, 2017. ‘

Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

These are the first financial statements prepared complying in all material respects with the notified
Accounting Standards by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 amended by Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendments) Rules, 2016 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India. The financial statements
comply with all the Ind AS notified by MCA till reporting date. i.e., March 31, 2017, '

The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies used in the preparation of opening balance
sheet as at April 01, 2015 throughout all periods presented in these financial statements, as if these policies
had always heen in effect and are covered by Ind AS 101 “First-time adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards”. The transition was carried out from accounting principles generally accepted in India {“Previous
GAAP"), as defined in Ind AS 101, The reconciliation of effects of the transition as required by Ind AS 101 is
disclosed in Note no 39 to these financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments which have been measured at fair vaiue at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the

accounting policies mentioned below.

2.2 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disciosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment 1o the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future pericds.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described helow. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates or parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
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assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

(i)

{ii}

(iii)

fiv)

(v}

Taxes
Deferred. tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. : :

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from ohservable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk
and v.olatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments. See note 29 and 30 for further disclosures.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates
arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the management. Considering the applicability of
Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013, the management has re-estimated useful lives and residual
values of al! its property, plant and equipment. The management believes that depreciation rates
currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and

equipment.

Contingencies:
Management judgement is required for estimating the possible inflow/outflow of resources, if any,
in respect of contingencies/claims/litigations against the company/by the company as it is not
possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Impairment of non- financial assets:
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are tested for impairment when events occur
or changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less
than its carrying value. The recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use
and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation involves use of significant estimates and assumptions
which includes turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates and net margins used to calculate
projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future econamic and market conditions.




GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited

CIN U45209TG2007PLCO56527

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

3.

(b}

Significant accounting policies
{a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current

classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

* Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycte

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading ‘

e Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A llability is current when:

s |tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

o it is heid primarily for the purpose of trading

¢ |tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivaients. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in INR (Indian rupees), which is the functional currency of the
Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates,

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency spot rates
at the date the transaction. first gualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
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c)

whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,
respectively}.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to seil an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ |nthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

s Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising

the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement asa whole:

» Level 1 — Quoted {(unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

s Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unohservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair vaiue disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.
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{d} Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties coilected on behalf of the government. The
Company has concluded that it is the principa! in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary
obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is aiso exposed to inventory and credit
risks.

However, sales tax/ value added tax (VAT) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is
tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is

excluded from revenue

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised:

® Rental income
Rentai income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line

basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its
operating nature.

s [nterestincome -
For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR}. EIR is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not
consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of

profit and loss.

(e} Concessionfee

(f)

The concession fee is computed as a percentage of income from land tease of the Company pursuant to
the terms and conditions of the agreement and is recoghized as charge to the Statement of profit and loss.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and
generates taxable income. '
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(g)

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
{either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provision where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax fiabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax

credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible tempaorary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to he recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and

the same taxation authority,
Property, plant and equipment

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), Freehold land and buildings (property), were carried in the
balance sheet at cost of acquisition. The company has elected to regard those values of property as
deemed cost at the date of the acquisition since they were broadly comparable to fair value. The company
has also determined that cost of acquisition or construction does not differ materially from fair valuation as
at 1 April 2015 (date of transition to Ind AS).

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.
When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
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depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and eguipment is added to its book value
only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance or extends its estimated useful life. All other expenses on existing property, piant .and
eguipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are
charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

. Useful lives as per Schedule-Il of Useful lives estimated by the
Particulars -
. the Companies act 2013 management (years)
Buildings on leasehold land 30 30
Taxiways Not Prescribed 30
Roads 5 10
Piant and machinery 15 15
Electrical  installations  and 10 10 -
equipment
Furniture and fittings 10 10
Office equipment 5 5
Computers and data processing 3or6 3or6
units ’

The management has estimated, supperted by independent assessment of professionals, the useful lives of
the following class of assets.

#The useful lives of Roads — other than RCC are estimated as 10 years. This is higher than those
indicated in schedule I

Leasehold Iimprovements are amortized over shorter of estimated useful lives or lease period.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is de-recognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(h) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfiiment of the
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arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

For arrangements entered into- prior to 1 April 2015, the Company has determined whether the
arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

(a) Company as a lessee!
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance
lease.

_Operating lease payments are recoghised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless either.

{i) another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit even if
the payments to the lessors are not on that basis; or

(i)  the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary
because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met.

(h) Company as a lessor: .
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease period. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in
the period in which they are earned.

Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease, unless either:

(i} another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s henefit even if
the payments to the lessors are not on that basis; or

(i) the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary
because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met.
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(i)

(i)

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantialiy all of the risks and rewards of ownership
transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded
as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding in respect of the lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part
of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in whnich they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs. '

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or
cash-generating unit’'s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash infiows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU '
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable

amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, guoted share prices for publicly traded companies or
other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken
to OCl. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCl up to the amount of any previous
revaluation surplus. An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
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(k)

{n

indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior periods/ years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of prdfit or loss unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present ohligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the cobligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any

reimbursement.

If the effect of the time vatue of maney is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the lability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time s recognised as a finance cost.

Financial instruments

- A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability

or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets
(A} Initial recognition and measurement:
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
-at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame

established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

(B) Subsequent measurement:
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in to two categories:

a. Equity investments measured at fair value through Profit and Loss.
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b. Debtinstruments at amortized cost
(a) Equity investments:

All equity investments in scope of ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acguirer in a
business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL, For all other
equity instruments, the group may make an irrevocable election to presenti in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such
election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OClL There is no
recycling of the amounts from OClI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

(b} Debt instruments at amartized cost:

" A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are
met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting

contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)

method.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acguisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in
finance income in the profit or loss, The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.
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{C] De-recognition:

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily de-recognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet)

when:

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, and

c) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

d) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

ii. Financial liabilities

(A) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or ioss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrdwings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

(B} Subsequent measurement:

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

(i} Loans and borrowings:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process,

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs

in the statement of profit and loss.
(C) De-recognition:

A financial tiability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled

or expires,
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iii. Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial
liabilities. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change
in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, fosses (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest.

{m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

(o}

{p)

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of
the Company’s cash management.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non—occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liahility also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses jts existence in the financial statements.

Contingent assets are only disclosed when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity.
Earnings per share

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earnings per Share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Measurement of EBITDA
The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/{loss) from continuing operations. In its

measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance cost and tax
expense.
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GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited
CIN No.U45209TG2007PLCOS6527
NGTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Amountin %

5  Other Non Current Assets:
A Copitol Advances - Unsecured
a. Consldered good
I, Related parties - -

ii. Others 1,48,87,030 -
Total 1,48,97,030 - -
B. Cthers:
a. Balance with Statutory Authorities ) 58,795,007 58,38,207 56,67,707
b, MAT Credit Entitlement 30,19,954 66,08, 405 20,48,368
Total 2,38,95,991 1,24,46,612 77,16,075

6 Investments - Current:
Investments in Mutual Funds - Unguoted

Liquid Funds 7,85,75,118 2,45,40,851 49,156,748
Total 7,85,75,118 2,45,40,851 49,16,748
Aggregate amount of Un-Quoted Investments ?,85,'75,118 2,45,40,851 49,156,748

Aggregate amount of Impairment in Value of Investments - -

Refer note no. 26 for detailed list of investments

7  Trade Recelvables:
A, Unsecured, Considered Good
a. Related Parties 43,27,68,669 37,81,53,786 28,51,50,925
b. Cthers 73,20,165 1,71,61,292 59,28,198

Less: Expected Credit Loss on sbove -

Total 44,00,88,835 39,53,15,078 29,20,79,123
8 Cash and cash equivalents:
A, Balances in bank a/c's .
a. Current Accounts 13,14,20,036 3,39,665 72,37,028
Total 13,14,20,036 :3,39,665 72,37,028
9 QOther Current Assets:
a. Unbilled Revenue
a.  Advance for Purchases and Expenses 8,45,924 8,18,920 -
b, Balance with Statutory Authorities 9,863,870 13,34,505 12,17,451
t. Prepald Expenses 6,741 33,658 34,917
d. Others - ) - 55,17,227

Total 18,46,535 21,87,083 67,689,595




GMR Hyderabad Aviation 5EZ Limited
CIN No.U45209TG2007PLCQB6527
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

10 Equity Share Capital:
A, Authorised Share Capitol:
5,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/-each 55,00,00,000 55,00,00,000 55,00,00,000

B. lssued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up share capital:
5,16,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 51,60,00,000 51,60,00,000 49,90,00,000

C. Reconciliation of the shares cutstonding ot the beginning and at the end of veor:
In no. of Shares

At the beginning of the year S,iG,OD,DOO 4,99,00,000 4,99,00,000
Share Capital Issued during the year - 17,00,000 -
Outstanding at the end of the year 5,16,00,000 5,16,00,000 4,99,00,000

n value of Shares

At the beginning of the year 51,60,00,000 49,90,00,000 49,50,00,000
Share Capital Issued during the year - 1,70,00,000 -
Outstanding at the end of the year 51,60,00,000 51,60,00,000 49,90,00,000

D.  Rights attached to the Equity Shares: .
The company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10/- per share with one vote per each share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recelve remaining assets of the company, after
distributicn of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

E. Shares held by Holding Company:
M/s. GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 5,16,00,000 4,99,00,000 4,99,00,000

F. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:
‘Equity Shares:
a. M/s. GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 100% 100% 100%
As per records of the Company, including its register of sharehoiders/ members and other declaration received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represent both legal and heneficial ownership of shares.

G. Mo Shares has been issued by the company for consideration cther than cash,during the perind of five years Immediately preceding the
reporting date

11 Other Equity:
A.  Share application meney pending allotment - - 1,70,00,000

B.  Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss

a. At the beginning of the period 13,11,01,445 10,70,31,767 10,51,24,572
b.  Adjustment due to adoption of New IndAS - - 19,07,195
¢, Profit for the year {5,19,36,595) 2,40,69,678

d. Atthe end of the period 7,91,64,850 13,11,01,445 10,70,31,767

Total 7,91,64,850 13,11,01,445 12,40,31,767




GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ LimHed
CIN No,U45209TG2007PLCD56527
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Amountin %

12 Borrowings - Non Current:

Term loan form a Bank 6(3,31,80,333 54,85,27,281 49,38,62,061
Less: Current Maturities 60,00,000 - -
Total 59,71,80,333 54,85,27,281 49,38,62,061

1. During the FY 14-15, the Company got the term foan restructured from the bank at an interest rate of 11% p.a agalnst the earlier interest
rate of 12% p.a.. Due to restructuring, the company got the additional term loan facility by way of additional Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL)
over a period of two years from March 1, 2015. Further, the company also got the the moratorium of two years in repayment of loans (term
loan and FITL) repayable over 32 unequal quarterly installments beginning from June 2017 against earlier repayment term of over 40 unequal
quarterly installments beginning from November 2013,

2. The Terim loan Is secured by mortgage of Leasehold rights, title, interest and benefit in respect of Leasehold Land and exclusive charge on all
movabie and immovable assets, operating cash flows, book debts, recelvables, commissions, revenue of whatsoever nature, both present and
future, and an exclusive charge or all the bank accounts of the Proiect, including TRA, Escrow account.ete,

13  Other financial liabilities - Non - Current:
A, Security Deposits

a. Related Parties 8,85,832 7,594,896 7,13,083
h. Others 62,15,635 2,45,47,745 140,71,393
Total 71,01,467 2,53,42,641 47,84,476

14 Deferred Taxes:
A Net deferred tax recognised in Balance Sheet

a. Fair value of financlal assets/liabilities {9,87,575) {10,80,035) {12,26,416)

b. Difference in WDV of fixed assets {5,006,41,590) {4,54,17,459) (4,09,27,413)

c. Other disallowances - - -

d. TaxHoliday Reversals 2,89,44,452 3,90,13,544. 3,29,88,244
Total (2,26,84,713) {74,83,950} {91,65,585)

B. Movement in Deferred Taxes
a. Deferred tax asset/(liability} - Profit and loss 1,53,88,137 {15,74,769) -
b. Deferred tax asset/{liabiity) - Other comprehensive income - -
¢ MAT Credit utilised during the year - -

d. MAT Credit entitled during the year {3,14,408) (45,60,037) -
Total 1,50,73,729 (61,34,806) -

15  Other Non - current tiabilities:

A Un earned revenue 75,68,963 789,36,699 33,68,936
B. Deferred Income 1,86,77,177 1,04,34,790 1,12,42,838
Total 2,62,46,140 1,83,71,489 1,46,11,774

16 Trade Payables - Current:
ta} Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
{b} Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than

micra enterprises and small enterprises
a. Related Parties _ 5,45,41,284 2,37,85,685 6,09,75,825

h. Others 1,49,323 7,31,114 2,86,560
Total 5,46,90,607 2,45,16,700 6,12,62,385




GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited
CIN No.,U45209TG2007PLCO56527
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Amount in ¥

17  Other financiai liahilities - Current:
A Security Deposits
a. Related Parties

h. Others 13,95,00,000 - -
B, Current maturities of long term borrowings 60,008,000 - -
. MNon Trade Payables
a. Rela.ted Parties §,13,325 14,280,372 8,33,283
b. Cthers 1,60,54,951 1,38,62,477 1,60,16,837
D. Retension money from Vendars 50,96,659 59,85,044 46,41,525
Total 16,75,64,935 2,13,27,893 2,15,91,655

18 Other current liabilities:
A, Advance from Customers

B. Unearned revenue 3,67,736 3,67,730 1,50,344
¢ Statutory Liabifities '

a. Service Tax Payable 483 1,834 -

b. Witholding Taxes Payable _ 8,61,472 2,30,538 5,098,747

€. Statutory Dues 2,13,665 - -
D. Deferred Income : 16,05,585 8,596,807 8,092,770

Total 30,48,942 14,96,915 16,41,361




GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited
CIN No.U45209TG2007PILCO56527
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Amountin %

19 Revenue from Operations:
A. Sale of Services

a. Rental 9,96,54,066 12,12,51,808
B. Other Operating Income
a. T services } 10,32,215 9,89,489
h. Common Area Maintenance 24,13,499 24,156,530
¢. Utilities Recoveries 3,30,91,706 3,21,78,557
Total 13,61,91,486 15,68,36,384
20 Other Income;
A. Interest Income on :
a. Others _ '16,06,422 10,87,258
B. Amortisation of Deferred Rental Income 5,67,782 8,05,402
C. Other Non-operating Income {Net of Expenses)
a. Income from investments
i. Change in Fair Value 32,693 32,341
fi. Gain on Sale of Investments 26,24,286 19,32,337
b. Provisions written back:
i. Excess provisions/ Credit Balances written back 13,47,773 3,75,69,086
Total 61,78,956 4,15,16,424
21 Finance Costs
g. Interest on Borrowings 6,40,13,134 5,79,29,748
h. Bank Charges 43,077 1,82,261
c. Interest on delayed payments 52,630 5,397
Total 6,41,08,841 5,81,17,406
22 Depreciation and amortisation expense:
a. Depreciation on Property ,Plant and Equipment 5,01,13,898 4,96,04,035
Total 5,01,13,898 4,96,04,035
23 Other expenses
a. Power and Water 2,94,74,264 2,85,87,119
b, Rental expenditure 27788% 284648
¢ Repairs and maintenance
i. Others 5,61,128 30,02,427
d.  Payments to Auditors
i. asauditors 2,56,928 2,51,250
ii. forother Services 10,181 41,149
e, Written off of:
. Baddebts 39,349 -
f. Ratesand Taxes 2,37,126 2,59,280
g. Maorketing
i. Advertisement and Sales Promotion 38,050 9,93,102




GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited
CIN No.U45209TG2007PLC0O56527
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Others

Consumption of Stores and Spares

Amountin¥

Insurance 4,14,607 4,03,571
Travelling and Conveyance 1,28,883 69,753
Legal and professional charges 30,17,496 39,16,655
Printing and Stationery 4,590 1,34,097
Communication Cost 6,13,033 811,251
Directors sitting fee 2,61,750 3,00,000
Security Charges 16,03,944 17,19,144
Manpower outsourcing Charges 4,30,706 4,77,719
Miscellaneous expenses 3,39,309 3,42,108
Notional Interest on Security deposit 1,31,014 5,49,556

Total 3,78,40,246 4,21,43,230




GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited

CIN U45209TG 2007PLC0O56527

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
(All amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

24, Income tax expense

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Income tax expense:
a. Current tax 3,902,859 4,560,037
b. Deferred tax arising from temporary differences 15,200,763 (1,681,635)
c. MAT Credit entitlement (314,408} (4,560,037)
Total tax expense for the year 18,789,214 (1,681,635)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Effective Tax Reconciligtion:
a. Net Profit/(Loss) before taxes {33,147,380) 22,388,043
Tax rate appiicable to the company as per normal
b. provisions 33.063% 30.900%
¢. . Tax expense on net profit {c = a*b) (10,959,518) 6,917,905
d. Increase/(decrease)in tax expénses on account of;
i. Non-taxable income/Exempt Income 34,463 49,508
ii. Accelerated Depreciation (2,044,908) (4,490,047)
jii. Expenses not allowed under income tax '13,372 1,668
iv. Expenses that are allowed under payment basis 17,929,782 16,735,179
v. Unabsorbed business loss (1,059,523) (19,204,219)
vi. Other adjustments {10,809) (9,993)
14,862,377 (6,917,905)
e. Tax as per normal provision under Income tax (¢ + d} 3,902,859 -
Tax rate applicable to the company as per MAT
f. provisions 20.39% 20.39%
g. MAT Tax expense on net profit - 4,564,665
h. Increase/(decrease) in MAT tax expenses on account of:
I. Interest on delayed remittance of TDS 1,100
ii, Adjustment due to adoption of Ind AS (5,728)
i. MAT tax provision under 115JB (g + h) - 4,560,037




GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited

CIN U45208TG2007PLCO56527

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
{All amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Deferred Taxes: -

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

As on the reporting date:

A.  Otherthan OCl component
© .Difference in WDV of fixed assets
-Fair Value of Financial Assets/liabilities
-Tax holiday reversals
-Brought forward losses
B. Total forthe year

Expense/(Income]) Recognised for the year ended:;
A. Deferred tax liability/{asset) / recognised in statement of
profit and loss:
a. As MAT Credit entitlement
h. Others _
B. Deferredtax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
C.  Deferred tax recognised in Total Comprehensive Income

(50,641,590)

(45,417,459)

(987,575) {1,080,035)
28,944,452 38,033,334
9,80,210

(22,684,713) (7,483,950)
15,200,763 (1,681,635)
15,200,763 (1,681,635)

Note: The Company is entitled to claim tax holiday for any 10 consecutive years out of 15 years, from the year
of commencement of commercial operations under Section 80-1AB of the Income Tax Act, 1961, with regard
to income from SEZ operations. The company had commenced its commercial operations in 2010-11.
Management, based on the projected future taxable income, expects to avail such tax holiday from the
Financial year 2020-21 which lasts up to Financial year 2023-24. Accordingly, the company has recognised
deferred tax liability on temporary differences as on March 31, 2017 after considering the deferred tax

reversals during the tax holigay period.

25. Earnings per share {EPS)

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS)

computations:

For the Year For the year
Particulars ended ended
‘ March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
a. Profit/{l.oss) for the period attributable to the Share Holders {51,936,595) 24,069,678
b. Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10/-each 51,600,000 51,349,180
Earnings per equity share (Basic and Diluted) - (a) / (b) {1.01) 0.47




_GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited

CIN U45209TG2007PLCO56527

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
{All amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

26. Financial Assets - Investments (detailed disclosure)

- As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 01, 2015
Particulars No. of No. of No. of
. Fair Value . Fair Value i Fair Value
units units - units
Current Investments:
A. Investment in
Funds at FVTPL
Birla Sunlife Cash plus
Inst. Preim- Growth 30,366 78,575,118 | 10,328 | 24,540,851 2,239 4,916,748

27. Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis) : Rs. Nil (March 31, 2016 : Rs. Nil, April 01 2015 : Rs Nil}
28. Details of transactions with related parties

A. Names of related parties and related party relationship

{i) Holding company GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited
{ii) | GHIAL's holding company GMR Airports Limited

(i} | GAL's holding company - GMR Infrastructure Limited

(iv) | Ultimate holding company GMR Holdings Private Limited

{v} | Fellow subsidiary companies * GMR Hotels and Resorts Limited

GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis Limited
GMR Aerospace Engineering Limited
GMR Aero Technic Limited

vi) | Fellow Subsidiary of Holding Company's GMR Airport Developers Limited
Holding Company GMR Krishnagiri SEZ Limited
RAXA Security Services Limited
(vii) | Key Management Personnel S.G.K Kishore-Director

Rajesh Kumar Arora-Director

G. Kavitha-Independent Director
Mohammad Ismail- Independent Director
Vinita Tara Chandhani-!ndependent Director”

Sandip Sinha Ray - CFO
EN Krishnan- Company Secretary

* Where transactions have taken place during the reporting periods.
# During the year Vinita Tara Chandhani has resigned as Independent director.




GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited

CIN U45209TG2007PLC0O56527

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
{All amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

B. Related

party transactions

. April 01, 2016 to | April 01, 2015 to
Sk No. Related Party Transactions March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
{i) Services received: ‘
a8 | GMR Hyderabad Internationai Airport Limited 300,994 284,648
b | GMR Hoiels and Resorts Limited 26,516 49,046
¢ | GMR Airport Developers Limited 20,794 1,339,840
d | GMR Krishnagiri SEZ Ltd 26,853 222,567
e | Raxa Security Services Limited 1,488,744 1,488,744
(i} Concession Fee:
a | GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 23,454,338 26,100,094
iii) Income from Operations:
: a | GMR Aerospace Engineering Limited 51,165,938 49,198,013
b | GMR Aero Technic Limited 33,318,765 53,634,624
(iv} Amortisation of Deferred Rental Income - Security
Deposits
a 1 GMR Aerospace Engineering Limited 300,321 300,321
{v) Interest expense on Security Deposits ‘
a | GMR Aerospace Engineering Limited 90,936 81,813
{vi) Waiver of - Concession Fee on lLease rentals of
Building:
2 | GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited - 37,499,960
(wii) Reimbursement of expenses claimed from the
Company during the year by its refated parties: .
a | GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 31,114,608 32,753,961
{vii) Sole of Asset
a | GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis Limited 4,486,963 -
{ix) Corporate Guarantee taken by the Company on
behalf of its banks and financial institutions
against the loan taken:
2 | GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited (54,112,050) (54,159,155)
ix) Bank guarantee availed from the Holding
Company:
a4 | GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 500,000 {31,430,987)
Directors Sitting Fee: 150,000 150,000
. %) G. Kavitha 65,000
Mohammad Ismail 65,000 150,000
a ! Vinita Tara Chandani
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29. Fair Values

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31, March 31, April 01, March 31, March 31, .
2017 2016 2015 2017 2016 April 01, 2015
Financial liabilities . :
Loan from bank 606,093,809 551,581,859 47,822,704 603,180,333 548,527,281 493,862,061
Security Deposits 25,807,361 38,660,601 18,560,601 7,101,467 25,342,641 4,784,476
Total 635,901,270 590,642,460 516,383,305 610,281,800 573,869,922 498,646,537

Financial Assets

Investment in Mutual

funds 78,501,745 24,500,171 4,908,408 78,575,118 24,540,851 4,916,748
Total 78,501,745 24,500,171 4,908,409 78,575,118 24,540,851 4,916,748

(A) Significant observable inputs used in estimating the fair values
(i) Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate recelvables/borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on
parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the
customer and the risk characteristics of the financed project.
{ii) Interest Rate factor has been considered at a rate of 11.44% p.a. by the company for discounting the
Seéurity deposit received from the customer,

{B) Fair valuation techniques

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best
and most relevant data available. The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

The following methods and assumptions were used 1o estimate the fair values:

{i) Fair value of cash and deposits, trade receivables, staff advances, trade payables, and other current
financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments.

{C) Fair valuation hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company’s asset and liabilities,
grouped into Level 1 to Level 3 as described below:

(i) CQuoted prices / published NAV {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liahilities {level
1). It includes fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets and are based on quoted
assets value {NAV) is published mutual fund operators at the balance sheet date.




GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited

CIN U45209TG2007PLCO56527

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
{All amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated}

(i) Inputs other than guoted prices included within ievel 1 that are chservable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2}. It includes fair
value of the financial instruments that are not traded in an active market {for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techhigues
maximise the use of observable market data where itis available and rely as little as possible on the
company specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable then instrument is included in level 2.

(iii) Inputs for the asset or fiability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3). If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the

instrument is included in level 3.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company’s asset and liabilities,
grouped into Level 1 to Level 3 as described below: '

Particulars As at March 31, 2017
Level-1 Level-2 Level-3
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Deposits from Customers - 146,601,467 -
Financial Assets measured at FVTPL
Investments in Mutual Funds 78,575,118 - -
Particulars As at March 31, 2016
Level-1 Level-2 Level-3
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Deposits from Customers - 25,342,641 -
Financial Assets measured at FVTPL
fnvestments in Mutual Funds 24,540,851 - -
Particulars As at April 1, 2015

Level-1 Level-2 Level-3

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Deposits from Customers . ) - 4,784,476

Financial Assets measured at FVTPL
Investments in Mutual Funds 4,916,748 - -

During the vear ended March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015, there were no transiers between
Leve! 1 and lLevel 2 fair value measurements, and no transfer into and out of Level 3 fair value

measurements.
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies

Financial Risk Management Framework _

The Company is exposed primarily to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and Market risk (fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates and interest rate), which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial
instruments. The Company assesses the unpredictability of the financial environment and seeks to mitigate
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company.

(i)

(ii)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of
default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk
is controlled by analyzing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to
whom the credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. Financial
instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables,
investments, derivative financial instruments, cash and cash equivalents, hank deposits and other
financial assets. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration
of credit risk.

Exposure to credit risk:

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk was Rs. 440,088,835, Rs. 395,315,081 and Rs. 292,079,123 as of March 31,
2017, March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015 respectively, heing the total of the carrying amount of
balances with trade receivables.

The total dues of the Company as at March 31,2017 includes Rs.432,768,669/- (March 31,2016
Rs.378,153,786/-: April 01,2015 Rs.286,150,925/-) from GMR Aerospace Engineering Limited
{henceforth referred to as GAEL), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company’s holding company,
M/s GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited (GHIAL) and GMR Aero Technic Limited
{henceforth.referred to as GATL}, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of GAEL. Out of the above dues
from GAEL and GATL, an amount of Rs.383,602,205/- {March 31, 2016 Rs.334,593,257/-; April
01,2015 Rs.210,270,395/-) is outstanding for more than six months. Considering the nature of
business of GATL and based on the business projections and contracts with Customer, management
is confident that revenues of GATL and GAEL will improve and the Company will be able to recover
its dues. Further, GHIAL has committed the support to GAEL and GATL in meeting its operational and
financial obligations. Based on business projections and contracts entered by the GATL with its
customers and support letter from GHIAL, the management has considered its dues from GAEL and
GATL are good of recovery and as such no provision has been made in the books of account.

As per the Group Policy, Company has not provided any loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses on
Financial Instruments/Dues from Group Companies as no credit risk is involved forthwith.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective
of liguidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for

use as per requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
e
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banking facilities and reserve bhorrowing facilities, by continuously menitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The table below provides undiscounted cash flows towards long term borrowings and other financial
tiabilities into relevant maturities based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the

contractual maturity date:

Particulars On Less than 3 3to12 1to 5 years > 5 years Total
demand months months
As at March 31, 2017
Borrowings - 1,500,000 4,500,000 | 391,300,000 | 208,793,909 | 606,093,909
Trade payables - 54,690,607 - - - | 54,690,607
Other financial - 161,564,935 - - 7,101,467 | 168,666,402
liabilities
Statutory dues 1,075,620 - - - - 1,075,620
Total 1,075,620 217,755,542 4,500,000 | 391,300,000 ; 212,981,800 | 827,612,962
As at March 31, 2016
Borrowings - - - | 260,800,000 | 287,727,281 | 548,527,281
Trade payables - 24,516,702 - - -1 24,516,702
Other financial - 21,327,893 - -| 25,342,641 | 46,670,534
liahilities
Statutory dues 232,372 - -1 - - - 232,372
Total 232,372 45,844,595 - | 260,800,000 | 313,069,922 | 619,946,889
As at 1 April 2015
Borrowings - - - | 16,38,00,000 | 330,062,061 | 493,862,061
Trade payahbles - 61,262,385 - - - | 61,262,385
Other financial . 21,591,655 - -| 4,784,476 | 26,376,131
liabilities
Statutory dues 598,747 - - - - 598,747
Total 598,747 82,854,040 - | 16,38,00,000 | 334,846,537 | 582,099,324
iii) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result
from changes in the foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit, liquidity and other
market changes. The Company’s exposure to market risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk.

A} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. The company performs a comprehensive
corporate interest rate management policy. As at March 31, 2017, 100% of the Company's

borrowings are at a floating rate of interest,

With all other variables held constant, the following table demonstrates the impact of borrowing

cost on floating rate portion of loans and horrowings.
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Interest rate Sensitivity Increase/Decrease in Basis points Effect on Profit Before Tax
For the year ended March 31, 2017 .
Term Loans 25 : 1,507,951
-25 _ {1,507,951)
For the year ended March 31, 2016
Term Loans - -
31. Leases

32

Company as a lessee

The Company had taken land under cancellable operating leases with the GMR Hyderabad Internationat .
Airport Limited under the Concession Agreement. The rental expenses under such Operating lease during
the year ended March 31, 2017 is Rs 277,889/~ (March 31, 2016: Rs 284,648),

Company as a lessor

Lease receipts accrued under cancellable operating leases amounting to Rs. 99,654,066 (March 31 2016: Rs,
121,251,808) have been recognized as rental income in the statement of profit and loss.

Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other
equity reserves atfributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital

“management is to maximise the shareholder value,

The Company manages its capital structure in consideration to the changes in economic conditions and the
reguirements of the financial covenants. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital. The Company’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio between 233% and 186%.

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 : April 1, 2015
Borrow-mgs including interest accruad on 603,180,333 548,527,281 493,862,061
horrowings (Note 12}
Net debt 603,180,333 548,527,281 493,862,061
Equity 516,000,000 516,000,000 459,600,000
Other Equity 79,164,850 131,101,445 124,031,767
Total Equity 595,164,850 647,101,445 623,031,767
Gearing ratic (Net Debt/ Total Equit

earing ratio { / quity) 101% 85% 79%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define
capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank
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to immediately call loans and horrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any

interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended

March 31, 2017.

33. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006:

Particulars

March
31, 2017

March
31, 2016

April 01,
2015

The principzl amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
supplier as at the end of each accounting year:

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises;

Interest due on above.

Total

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year.

The amount of further Interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006.

34. Commitments and Contingencies
A. Contingent Liabilities:

a.The Company had received Show Cause Notice dated

July 17,

2015

from the

Office of the Assistant Commissioner of Customs, Central Excise and Service Tax wherein service fax
refund of Rs.78, 445/~ (March 31,2016: Rs,78,445/-; April 01,2015 : Nil) has been denied. Based on
the internal assessment the management is confident that no provision is required to be made as at

March 31, 2017.
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b.Subsequent to the year end, the company has received a Show Cause Notice (SCN) from the
Commissioner (Audit), Central Excise and Service Tax for an amount of Rs.85,495,588/- {March
31,2016: Nil; April 01, 2015 : Nil) (for granting exemption of service tax under renting of immovable
property services without obtaining Form A1/ A2 for the period from October 2011 to March 2016.
Based on the internal assessment the management is confident that no provision is reguired to be
made as at March 31, 2017

B. Commitments:
a. Capital Commitments:
Estimated Value of contracis remaining to be executed on capital
account not provided for {Net of Advances) Rs. 28,380,308/~ (March 31, 2016: Rs. 31,822,416/-, April
01, 2015: Rs 3,440,089/- ).

b. Other Commitments: Revenue share @ 25% of the lease rentals earned on land leased by the
company is payable to GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited.

35. Specified Bank Notes{SBN)

Details of dealings in SBN in terms of notification dated March 30, 2017 issued by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs

Other INR

Particulars SBNs L Total
denomination notes

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 - - -
(+) Permitted receipts - -1 -

(+) Non Permitted receipts - - -

(-) Permitted payments . - - -
(-) Non Permitted payments - - -

(-} Amount deposited in Banks - - -
Closing cashin hand as on 30.12.2016 - - -

36.Details of Un-Hedged foreign currency : Rs Nil { March 31 2016 : Rs Nil, April 01 2015 : Rs Nil)

37. The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM}/Executive management of the company monitors the
operating resuits of its business as a single operating segment. As the company's revenues are generated
from customers in India and all Nen-Current operating assets are deployed in India, entity wide disclosures
are not applicable.

38. The Company does not have any employees on its payroll as on March 31, 2017 (March 31, 2016: Nil, April
01 2015: Rs Nil}. Accordingly, the Company does not have any obligation towards any Defined Benefit Plan
or any Defined Contribution Plan as per IND AS 19 - Employee Benefits,
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39. First time Adoption

These financial statements, for the year ended March 31, 2017, are the first the Company has prepared in
accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2015, the Company
orepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Previous
GAAP).

Accordingty, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for
periods ending on March 31, 2017, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended
March 31, 2016 as described ir1 the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial
statements, the Company's opening halance sheet was prepared as at April 01, 2015, the Company’s date of -
transition to Ind AS., This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its
Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at April 01, 2015 and the financial
statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2017,

Estimates:
The estimates at April 1, 2015 and at March 31, 2016 are consistent with those made for the same dates in
accordance with Indian GAAP [after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting pelicies}. The
estirnates used by the company to present these amounts in accordance with ind AS refiect conditions at
Aprit 1, 2015, the date of transition to Ind AS, as of March 31, 2016. ’

Exemptions applied .
(nd AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain
requirements under Ind AS. The Group has applied the following exemptions:

{A) Mandatory exceptions:

] Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:
The company has chosen to apply the derecognition requirements for financial assets and
liabilities as per Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of
transition to Ind AS.

(ii) Classification and measurement of financial assets:
The company has classified financial assets in accordance with conditions that existed at the date
of transition to Ind AS.

(B) Optional exceptions; _
{i) Deemed cost-Previous GAAP carrying amount: (PPE and Intangible Assets):
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its PPE and intangible
assets as recognised in its Previous GAAP financial as deemed cost at transition date.
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{ii)

Fair value measurement of financial assets or financial liahilities:
First-time adopters may apply Ind AS 109 to day one gain or loss provisions prospectively to

transactions occurring on ar after the date of transition to Ind AS. Therefore, unless a first-time
adopter elecis to apply Ind AS 109 retrospectively to day one gain or loss transactions,
transactions that occurred prior to the date of transition to Ind AS do not need to be

retrospectively restated.
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Recenciliation of equity as at April 01, 2015

ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
a. Property, Plant and Equipment
h. Capital work-in-progress
c.  Other non-current assets

2. Current Assets
a. Inventories
b, Financial Assets
. investments
ii. Tradereceivables
iit. Cash and cash eguivalents
¢ Current Tax Assets (Net)
d.  Other current assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
a. Equity Share capital
b. Other Equity

Liabilities
2. Non - Current Liabilities
a. Financial Liabilitles
. Borrowings
it.  Other financial liahilities
n. Deferred tax liabilities {Net)
c.  Other Noncurrent liabilities

3. Current Liabilfties
a. Financlal Liakilities
i. Tradepayables
ii. Other financial liabilities
b.  Other current tiahilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Explanatory Notes:

L B ow

Amount in

68,85,23,674 (35,83,052) 69,49,40,622
18,97,53,515 - 18,97,53,515
77,15,075 - 77,16,075
89,59,93,264 (35,83,052) 89,24,10,212
49,08,409 5,339 49,16,748
29,20,79,123 . 29,20,79,123
72,37,028 72,37,028
2,65,38,858 . 2,65,38,858
67,685,595 - 67,69,595
33,75,33,013 8,339 33,75,41,352
1,23,35,26,277 {35,74,713)  1,22,89,51,564
49,90,00,000 . 49,90,00,000
12,21,24,572 19,067,195 12,40,31,767
62,11,24,572 19,07,195 62,30,31,767
49,78,22,704 (39,50,643) 45,38,62,061
1,85,60,501 (1,37,76,125) 47,84,476
90,46,333 1,19,252 91,665,585
33,68,935 1,12,42,838 1,46,11,774
52,87,98,574 {63,74,678) 52,24,23,896
6,12,62,385 - 6,12,62,385
2,15,91,655 - 2,15,91,655
7,48,091 8,582,770 . 16,41,861
8,36,03,131 8,92,770 8,44,95,901
1,23,35,26,277 {35,74,713)  1,22,99,51,564

1. Ind AS 1093 requires transaction costs incurred towards originaticn of berrowings to be reduced from the Borrowing amount on initial
racognition. Transaction costs are recognised over the tenure of the borrowings as part of the finance expense by applying the effective

interest methed.

The company has previcusly apporticned the upfromt fee paid on chtaining loan towards PPE and a part of upfront fee is charged to
Statement of Profit and Loss. Accordingly, as on the date of transition the upfront fee to the extent capitalised in the earlier period net of
depreciation reversal amounting to 33,583,052/ is credited to Property, Plant and Equipment,

The portien of upfront fee paid on Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL) initially charged to Statement of Profit and Loss ameunting to
452,400/- is credited back to retalned-zamings after considering the apportionment of upfront fee to be charged upto the date of

transition.

2, Uncler Previous GAAR, investments were classified either as current or non-current, Based on the requirement of Ind AS 109, investments

have been designated at fair value through profit or loss snd reported at fair value as at April 01, 2015,
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Reconciliation of equity as at April 01, 2015

3. Security deposits has been valued at amortised cost as per Ind AS 109. Accordingly, an amount of % 1,640,517/ has been transferred to
reserves as on April 01, 2015.
Accordingly, Deferred lease rentals of 11,242,838/~ as non current and % 882,770/- as current portion is recognised on liabilities side.

4. The company has accounted for the deferred tax on the various adjustments between Previous GAAP and Ind AS at the tax rate at which
they are expected to be reversed. Accordingly, the resultant impact on deferred tax Liability is recorded in the books cf accounts for the
vear ended March 31, 2015,
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ASSETS:
1. Non-turrent assets
a. Property, Plant and Equipment 1 ' 56,82,96,588 {34,27,082} £6,48,69,506
b, Capital work-in-progress 18,20,60,545 - 18,20,60,545
c.  Other non-current assets 1,24,46,612 - 1,24,45,612
86,28,03,745 (34,27,082) 85,93,76,663
2, Current Assets
2. Financial Assets
i, Investments 2 2,45,00,171 40,680 2,45,40,851
ii. Tradereceivables 35,53,15,078 - 39,53,15,078
iit. Cash and cash eguivalents 3,389,665 - 3,39,665
b, Current Tax Assets {(Net) 1,24,08,373 - 1,24,08,973
¢ Other current assets 21,287,083 - 21,87,083
43,47,50,971 40,580 43,47,91,650
Total Assets 1,29,75,54,715 (33,86,402} 1,29,41,68,313

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES:

1. Equity
a.  Equity Share capital 51,60,00,000 - 51,60,00,000
b Other Equity ) ] 12,90,67,970 | 20,33,475 13,11,01,445
64,50,67,970 20,33,475 64,71,01,445
Liabilities
2. Non - Current Liabilities
a.  Financial Liahilities ,
[ Borrowings 1 £5,19,81,859 (34,54,578) 54,85,27,281
ii.  Other financial l'ahilities 3 3,86,60,601 {1,33,17,960) 2,53,42,641
b. Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 4 74,62,884 21,066 74,83,950
c.  Other Nencurrent liabilities 3 79,36,700 1,04,34,720 1,83,71,489
60,60,42,044 (63,16,682} 59,97,25,362
3. Current Liabilities
a.” Financial Liabilities
i.  Trade payables 2,45,16,700 - 2,45,16,699
. Other financial liabilities 2,13,27,893 - 2,13,27,893
b.  Other current liabilttias 4 5,00,108 8,896,807 14,96,915
4,64,44,701 8,96,807 4,73,41,506
Tatal Equity and Liabilities 1,29,75,54,715 {33,86,400) 1,29,41,68,313

Explanatory Notes:

" 1. The Property Plant and Equipment for March 31, 2016 is increased by X 1,55,970/- as a result of amortisation of upfront fee from April 01,
2015 to March 31, 2016,
As at March 31, 2016 the company has recognised finance cost on amortisation of upfront fee amounting to < 5,06,065/- that was previcusly
credited to retained earnings.

2. Under Previous GAAP, investiments were classified either as current or non-current, Based on the requirement of Ind AS 109, investments
have been designated at falr value through profit or loss and reported at fair value as at Apri! 01, 2015. Based on the policy of the comgany
mutual fund investments in Debt, Balanced and Fquity funds are dassified as non-current Investments and liguid funds are classified as
current Investments.

3. As at March 31, 2016, Interest expense of & 549,556/~ has been charged to Statement of Profit and Loss due to unwinding of discounts, with a
corresponding credit of £ 895,402/ due to amortisation of Deferred lease rentals.

4. The company has accounted for the defarred tax on the various adjustments between Previous GAAP and Ind AS at the tax rate at which they
are expected to be reversed, Accordingly, the resultant impact on deferred tax Liabtlity is recorded in the books of accounts for the year
ended March 31, 2016.




GMR Hyderabad Aviation S£Z Limited
CIN No.LJ45209TG2007PLCO56527
NOTES TD THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017

Recanciliation of profit for the year ended March 31, 2016

| Revenue from Cperations 15,68,36,384 - 15,68,36,384
Il Cther income 1,2 4,05,88,681 9,27,743 4,15,16,424
Total Income {1 +H) 19,74,25,065 9,27,743 19,83,52,808
Il Expenses:

Changes in Inventories of Stock-In-Trade
Cancessicn Fees 2,61,00,094 - 2,61,00,094
Finance Cost 3 E,76,11,341 5,06,065 5,81,17,406
Depreciation antd amortization expenses 4 4,97,60,005 {1,55,970) ) 4,96,04,035
Cther expenses 4,15,93,674 5,49,556 4,21,43,230
Total expenses (V) 17,50,65,114 8,99,651 17,59,64,765
Profit before prior period adjustments {I1-1l1} 2,23,59,951 28,092 2,23,88,043

Pricr period adjustments:
Arrears of Depreciation -
Expenses relating to earlier years -
Raversal of amounts written back in earfier years - -
Income relating to earfier years - -

VI  Profit before tax 2,23,59,951 28,092 2,23,88,043
VIl Tax Exbenses: . i .
Current tax - 45,60,037 - 45,60,037
Less: MAT credit entitlement (45,60,037) - (45,860,037}
Tax for earlier years - - -
Defarred Tax Liability /{Asset) 5 {15,83,449) {98,186) {16,81,635)
{15,83,449) {98,186) (16,81,635)

VI Prafit for the year{VI-V1l) 2,39,43,400 1,26,278 2,40,69,678

[¥X  Other Comprehensive income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or -
loss
{ii} Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to - -
profit or loss

¥ Total Comprehensive Income for the yaar (VIH+IX) 2,39,43,400 1,26,278 2,40,69,678

Explanatory Notes:

1. The Property Plant and Eguipment for March 31, 2016 Is increased by % 155,970/ as a result of amortisation of upfront fee from April 01, 2015 to March

31, 2016.
As at March 31, 2016 the company has recognised finance cost on amortisation of upfront fee amounting to % 506,065/- that was previously credited to

retained earnings.

Under Previous GAAP, investments were classified either as current or non-current, Based on the requirement of Ind AS 109, investments have been
designated at fair value through profit or loss and reported at fair value as at April 01, 2015. Based on the policy of the company mutual fund investments
in Debt, Balanced and Equity funds are classified as non-current investments and liquid funds are classified as current investments.

™

. As at March 31, 2016, Interest expense of % 549,556/~ has been charged to Statement of Profit and Loss due to u.nw'\nding of discounts, with a
corresponding credit of $895,402/- due to amortisation of Deferred lease rentals.

w

4, The company has accounted for the deferred tax on the various adjustments between Previous GAAP and Ind AS at the tax rate at which they are expected
to be reversed, Accordingly, the resultant impact on deferred tax Liability is recorded in the books of actounts for the year ended March 31, 2016.

As per the report of even date
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